
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
May 25, 2011 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public comments. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the April 27, 2011 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of the Engagement Letter with Charles Z. 

Fedak & Company for auditing services for the year ended June 30, 
2011. 

c. Resolution setting a public hearing for June 22, 2011 for the Urban 
Water Management Plan. 

d. Resolution setting a public hearing for June 22, 2011 for the Oak 
View Water Availability Charge. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes 
b. Executive Committee Minutes 
c. Personnel Committee Minutes 

 1
d. Water Resources Committee Minutes 



 2

e. Finance Committee Minutes 
 

7. Budget Workshop 
 

a. Review and discussion of the proposed Fiscal Year 2011-2012 
Budget. 

 
b. Resolution setting the public hearing on the budget for June 22, 

2011. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
8. Recommend a change in the job status of the Associate Fisheries 

Biologist from a five-year term to full employment and change the salary 
range to E31. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
9. Review and consideration of approval of part-time employment for specific 

relatives of current employees. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion providing direction to staff 
 
10. Request from California Special Districts Association for nomination for 

SCDA Board of Directions. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving nomination 
 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Lake Casitas Recreation Area report for April, 2011. 
c. Investment Report 

 
12. Closed Session 
 
 a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision 

(a) of Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Ortiz 
v. Casitas Municipal Water District. 
 

b. (Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6) 
Conference with Labor Negotiators:    
Agency Designated Representatives:  Rebekah Vieira, Draza 
Mrvichin 
Employee Organization: Supervisory & Professional, General Unit 
and Recreation Unit.  

 



 3

13. Adjournment  
  

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

April 27 2011 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held April 27, 2011 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Kaiser, Word, and Bergen were present.  
Directors Baggerly and Hicks were absent. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, 
General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John 
Mathews.  There were two staff members and one member of the public in 
attendance.  President Kaiser led the group in the flag salute. 
 

1. Public comments. 
 
 None 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that item 7 was being pulled.  
Additionally, Mr. Wickstrum spoke with Nancy Marzulla for an update and they 
will be asking when final arguments will be heard, perhaps as early as May.  
 

Last Friday there was a meeting with Representatives from the Bureau of 
Reclamation for a field review.  We asked that a few items that are remaining 
following the 1999 Casitas Dam Modernization process be removed from the 
comprehensive facility review and we are hopeful that we can settle on the 
Safety of Dams issues in the future.  There is a meeting tomorrow with Golden 
State to discuss the Urban Water Management Plan update.   
 

At our last meeting we mentioned we will have two main water shut 
downs.  They went well.  There were a few communication areas for 
improvement and we were able to involve new staff and we successfully got the 
mains changed out and back on line according to the schedule we provided to 
the customers. The contractor did a great job.  We had one complaint from a 
customer who didn’t get a hang tag on his door. 
 

Easter weekend at LCRA revenue numbers were comparable to last year.  
Budget binders were handed out and included a timeline for review and adoption. 
 

The most recent Recreation Agreement draft was received last night and 
we have scheduled a conference call for May 4th. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that he attended the retirement 
luncheon for Matt Bryant at Ventura River County Water District.  Matt has 
always been a peer that I respect and it has been a good tour of duty for him.  It 
is sad to see him retire at this point.  Bert Rap, is walking into a shop that is in 
good shape. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 



 2

Director Kaiser expressed appreciation for employees that broke away 
from their families on Easter to repair a leak on Loma. 

 
4. Consent Agenda      ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the April 13, 2011 Board Meeting. 
 
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and 

passed, the Consent Agenda was adopted. 
 
5. Bills 
 

Director Bergen asked about Water Trax USA an annual subscription for 
$3,673.  Mr. Wickstrum explained it is a software license and will get back to her 
with further details. 
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Word and 
passed, the bills were approved. 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes 
b. Executive Committee Minutes 
c. Water Resources Committee Minutes 

 
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and 

passed, the Committee/Manager Reports were approved for filing. 
  
7. Request for Consideration of Fee Waiver for space use by the Lake 

Casitas Rowing Association.  ITEM PULLED FROM AGENDA 
 
 
8. Recommend approval of the creation of a full-time Water Conservation 

position.       APPROVED  
 

Mr. Wickstrum explained that this position is in the current budget and is 
long overdue.  The requirements for water conservation continue to increase and 
Ron Merckling has taken on so many additional responsibilities.   
  

  Director Bergen added that at first she was concerned with adding a 
position but after talking with Steve and Ron at length she is convinced it is 
necessary.  The legal requirements are there and there is a lot of reporting and 
analysis required.  It is time consuming, takes technical know how.  Ron can’t do 
it all and I support this action. 
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Word and 
passed, the above recommendation was approved. 
 
 



 3

9. Information Items: 
 

a. Lake Casitas Recreation Area Report for March, 2011 
b. Lake Casitas Storage Volume Comparison 
c. Casitas Reservoir Water Inventory Summary 2010/11 Water Year. 
d. Legislative Outreach to Support Special Districts Tax Allocations. 
e. News Articles. 
f. Investment Report 

 
Director Kaiser moved the meeting to closed session at 3:30 p.m. 
 
10. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision 
(a) of Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Klein 
v. Casitas Municipal Water District. 
 
 

b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Govt. Code Sec. 54957) 
  Title: General Manager 
 

At 4:05 p.m.  Director Kaiser moved the meeting back into open session.  
Attorney John Mathews stated the board met with legal counsel regarding the 
performance evaluation of the General Manager.  The evaluation was reviewed 
and no action was taken other than to complete the review. 
 

On the existing litigation matter, the board met and there was no action 
taken to report out of closed session.  The board has seen a letter engaging the 
law firm of Musik, Peeler and the board may wish to take action on that 
authorizing the President of the Board to sign the engagement letter. 
 

On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and 
passed, the engagement letter was approved. 
  
11. Adjournment  
 
 President Kaiser adjourned the meeting at 4:10 pm 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Secretary 















 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC 
 HEARING FOR INPUT REGARDING THE URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
 

WHEREAS, Casitas is interested in public comments regarding the adoption of the 
Urban Water Management Plan;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1.   A public hearing will be conducted for the purpose of hearing all interested 
parties regarding the Urban Water Management Plan. 
 

2. The place of said hearing is hereby fixed at Casitas' Office, 1055 Ventura 
Avenue, in the town of Oak View.  The date and time for said hearing is hereby fixed as 
June 22, 2011, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

3. The Clerk of the Board of Casitas is hereby directed to give notice of said 
hearing by publishing a notice of the time and place of the hearing in the local newspapers. 
 
 ADOPTED this 25th day of May, 2011. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
President, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 



 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH SCHEDULES OF 
WATER AVAILABILITY CHARGES FOR 

CERTAIN PROPERTIES WITHIN THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT AND SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC 

HEARING RELATIVE THERETO 
 
 
 

 WHEREAS, there exists within the Casitas Municipal Water District 
certain properties within the area generally known as the town of Oak View for 
which Casitas has and is incurring debts and expenses for the financing, 
operation and maintenance of water facilities to serve said properties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the land owners and inhabitants of 
said properties that there be imposed a water availability charge on land to which 
water is reasonably available whether or not water us used thereon to secure 
funds to assist in a discharge of said debts and expenses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, water availability charges are authorized by the Municipal 
Water District Law of 1911—specifically, Sections 71630 et seq. and 71638 
authority to use alternative procedures; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a careful; study has been made by the General Manager as 
to land and water and water availability to said properties which recommends 
that a water availability charge be scheduled and levied on such properties; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of 
Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1. The schedule of proposed water availability charges for all of those 
certain properties located within Casitas and within the area 
generally known as the town of Oak View as assessed by the 
Ventura County Assessor or as otherwise determined by Casitas 
and shown on map No. 2485 on file in Casitas’ office for the fiscal 
year July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2012, shall be as follows: 

 
a. Ten dollars ($10) per acre for each acre or fraction thereof of 

the parcel of land. 
 
 



b. Ten dollars ($10) per parcel for each parcel less than one 
acre in size. 

 
2. A public hearing will be conducted for the purposed of hearing all 

interested parties on the questions of whether the proposed water 
availability charges set forth in this resolution shall be adopted. 

 
3. The place of said hearing is hereby fixed at the office of Casitas, 

1055 Ventura Avenue, in the town of Oak View.  The date and time 
for said hearing is hereby fixed as Wednesday, June 22, 2011 at 
3:00 p.m. 

 
4. The Secretary of Casitas is hereby directed to give notice of said 

hearing by publishing a notice of the time and place of the hearing 
as required by law and by mailing a notice to each person to whom 
a parcel of real property described in the proposed assessment has 
changed ownership since the last standby assessment or 
availability charge was fixed to the address shown on the last 
equalized assessment role or known to the Secretary. 

 
 
 

Adopted this 25th day of May, 2011. 
 
 
_________________________ 
President,  
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
 



















































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  May 5, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of May 2, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Kaiser and Hicks 
 Staff – PSM Carol Belser  

Public – Gary Wolfe 
 
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. 

Director Kaiser inquired about the progress on rodent control in the park.  Work is in 
progress to control the large ground squirrel population that has developed this spring 
and address the yellow jacket population appropriately. 
 
PSM Belser reported that the Beer Festival went well last weekend, but there were a 
few alcohol related incidents that were directly associated with the festival that will be 
addressed with the event organizers. 
 
The General Manager informed the Committee that he has a meeting scheduled with 
Bureau and Forest Service management.  The purpose of the meeting is to begin to 
improve interagency relations.  The General Manager will report back to the 
Committee and/or Board on the developments of the meeting.  It was further noted 
that the State Water Quality Control Board has issued a letter of non-compliance to the 
Forest Service for failure to submit annual reports on the Casitas Fire Station septic 
system.  It is expected that this reporting will be adequately resolved in a timely 
manner by the Forest Service. 
 
PSM Belser reminded the Committee of the dates for the soft-opening of the water 
park (May 20th) and Ojai Wine Festival (June 12th). 
 

4. Proposed 2011/2012 Recreation Budget. 
The Committee reviewed the proposed 2011/2012 Recreation Budget and commented 
on various expenditures and revenues, and the ideas to gap the deficit balance of this 
budget.  PSM Belser computed the budget with the expectation of receiving 5% less 
revenues than last year.  It was agreed that given the economy and less public 
discretional funds, raising rates may not result in a progression of bridging the deficit 
gap.  The Committee did express concern over the deficit and the draw from 
unrestricted reserves to fund the recreation enterprise operation.  Staff will assess 



where recreational services are provided and not being adequately funded by the 
public users, and make recommendations for adjustments at a future date.  It should 
be noted that the deficit gap in the budget is significantly less than in previous budgets. 
 
Of specific note was that the fish purchase budget is requested to be at $30,000, 
where $60,000 had been spent in 2010/2011.  The Committee discussed other 
financing methods for fish purchases, such as focused donations, in lieu of unfunded 
District expenditures or redirection of State Department of Fish and Game plantings. 
 
The Committee discussed several focused budget items.  One such item concerned 
the WiFi at the park.  Gary Wolfe is in progress of setting up a WiFi system at the 
snack bar, which may encourage park users to visit the snack bar and purchase food. 
PSM Belser reviewed the difficulties experienced with the last WiFi provider. 

 
5. Review of Incidents and Comments.  

The Committee received a brief update from Gary Wolfe on the recent boating 
accident. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  May 5, 2011 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of May 3, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 

1. Roll Call.  Director Kaiser, Director Baggerly 
 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.   

Director Baggerly requested further consideration by staff on a few items that had 
been brought to staff in the past.  The Items are:  

(1) Provide raptor perch and kestrel boxes at various sites where 
rodent control is needed around District facilities (i.e., Casitas 
saddle dike and Casitas Dam).  This project may also be 
supported by the local chapter of the Audubon Society. 

(2) Place effective EXIT traffic signs at the Santa Ana Ramp.   
Director Baggerly also requested further work on the District’s website to provide 
more and better links to other sites.  Each of these items will be considered as 
priorities and time allows. 

 
4. Legislative Outreach Update. 

The Committee reviewed the recent edition of CSDA e-News that provided 
insight to the hearing held by the State Assembly Accountability and 
Administrative Review (AAR) Committee on proposals concerning special 
districts.  The proposals recommendations were not approved.   
 
A copy of the AAR updated special district recommendations is attached to this 
memo as information being provided to the District’s board. 
 

5. Update on interactions with Other Water Companies.   
The General Manager updated the Committee on recent discussion with the 
United Water Conservation District concerning preliminary ideas to bring more 
State Water into Ventura County and the Oxnard Basin via the UWCD’s facilities. 
A draft agreement will be developed over the next two months that may be 
considered by the Committee and Board. 
 
 

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2011 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: Assistant to the General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
Re:  Personnel Committee Meeting of May 18, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 

1. Roll Call.  Director Word, Director Bergen 
Staff – Steve Wickstrum, Rebekah Vieira, Michael Shields 
Public – Danny Carrillo, SEIU 

 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.   

Director Word suggested that the district boundaries may need to be evaluated 
again following the results of the recent census.  Mr. Wickstrum will bring this to 
the Executive Committee for review. 

 
4. Update on Recruitments 

Current recruitments include the Water Conservation Specialist which will be 
posted shortly.  Numerous lifeguards are in the process of being hired for the 
Water Adventure. 
 

5. Discussion regarding the employment of relatives as part-time employees.   
The General Manager informed the board of a situation where family members of 
full time employees have applied for part-time temporary positions.  In the past 
where there has been clear separation without the ability for one family member 
to supervise another, employment has been approved.  The current situations 
include the potential hiring of a lifeguard who is a dependent of a board member 
and the potential hiring of a lifeguard whose stepmother works in Recreation.  In 
reviewing the policies it is determined that the decisions to hire in this instance 
need to be reviewed by the Board.   

 
6. Discussion regarding converting the Associate Fisheries Biologist position from a 

term of five years to a regular position. 
 The Associate Fisheries Biologist position was approved on a five year term 

basis as it was unclear what the district’s needs would be in this area.  At this 
time it is a critical position within the district and it is desired to convert this 
position to regular full-time employment.  In addition it is recommended that the 
salary range be adjusted to a comparable range for the position. As the position 
currently receives full benefits there are limited impacts to the budget. The 



committee approved of submitting this item to the Board. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Water Resources Committee Meeting of May 19, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Director Baggerly and Director Hicks.  Staff – Ron Merckling.   
 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board Comments.   

Director Hicks asked if the road to the event area was closed for any specific reason.  
The road was probably closed due to wind-blown palm debris that had not been 
removed from the road.  The road is usually open otherwise. 

 
4. Manager Comments. 

The General Manager reported that he met with the Forest Service and Bureau of 
reclamation representatives.  The meeting was a positive step to mending the fences 
and developing good relationships with new staff. 
 
The General manager reported that Ojai Flow is nearing the point at which they 
believe they have public support for the initiative to acquire golden State Water 
Company and will be presenting the petitions to the General Manager on May 23rd, 
allowing the General Manager to begin discussions on this matter with the appropriate 
committee. 
 
The General Manager noted to the Committee that personnel changes have occurred 
at the City of Ventura, a new Water Manager has been hired.  Plan to meet with the 
new manager in the near future. 
 

5. Discussion regarding the Urban Water Management Plan.  
Mr. Merckling provided the Committee with a preliminary draft of the 2010 Urban 
Water Management Plan.  Work on the draft is continuing as well as the input into the 
new database from California Urban Water Council.  The June 2011 committee 
meeting may be scheduled for an earlier date in order to allow the committee to 
provide last input to the draft document, before bring to the Board for adoption.  Mr. 
Merckling is posting the draft document for public review on June 3rd. 
 

 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Finance Committee Meeting of May 20, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

 Director Bergen and Director Word  
 Staff – Steve Wickstrum 
   
2. Public comments.   

 None. 
 

3. Board/Management comments.  
None. 

 
4. Review of the Financial Statement for April 2011. 

The Committee reviewed the April 2011 financial statement.  Noting water sales are 
lagging from last year.  Water sales reductions noted in Resale Pumped and Agriculture, 
likely due to wet winter and soft summer months.  Resale Gravity (City of Ventura) is not 
likely to exceed 5,000 acre-feet in order to keep within the in-district water sales balance. 
 Recreation is keeping pace with revenues, excluding the $80,000 grant received in 2009. 
 The District has received $1.89 million from taxes. 
 

5. Review of the Water Consumption Report for April 2011.  
It was recognized that the agricultural and pumped resale classifications are behind last 
year’s pace due to the rainfall The Committee discussed projections and basis for 
development of the 2011-12 budget revenue.  With the wet May 2011 the District may 
reach only 12,500 acre-feet of water delivery, the lowest annual delivery since 1995. 
 

6. Review of Preliminary Draft Budget for Fiscal Year 2011-2012. 
The Committee discussed one minor change to add $25,000 for one vehicle replacement 
in 2011-12.  The District has two high-mileage recreation patrol trucks that are showing 
signs of wear-tear and two trucks without air conditioning, but low mileage.  Director 
Word commented that he would rather see the item in the budget rather than adding to 
the budget at a later date.  This item will be suggested during the workshop to be added 



 2 

in the final budget. 
 
The Committee discussed the schedule for the budget process.  The draft budget will be 
provided to the Board on April 27th, followed by a workshop during the regular meeting of 
the Board of Directors on May 25, a final review and opportunity for any changes on June 
8th, and final adoption of the FY 2011-12 Budget on June 22nd. 

 
7. Review of Oak View Water Availability Schedule. 

The Committee the justification for the charge and suggested that this charge should be 
discontinued.  This would likely require a simple motion by the Board. 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  May 18, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  FY 2011-12 Budget Workshop   
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors review and provide any changes to the General 
Manager’s recommended budget for FY 2011-12 during the May 25, 2011 workshop, and direct 
staff to develop the final budget to be considered for adoption by the Board on June 22, 2011. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The staff of Casitas Municipal Water District has prepared the draft FY 2011-12 Budget.  The 
draft budget gone through a vigorous review by the General Manager and Finance Committee.  
The draft FY 2011-12 budget funds the highest priority projects and tasks necessary to achieve 
our goals while keeping our costs and water rates as low as possible.  The budget is a financial 
management tool which presents the District’s projected revenues and expenses, and follows 
the district’s capital plan.  
 
During the annual budget workshop, the Board of Directors will provide additional insight to the 
budget and work toward the development of a final budget document.  It is anticipated that the 
final budget will undergo a public hearing and subsequently be adopted by the Board of 
Directors on June 22, 2011. 
 
BUDGET SUMMARY:  
 
The FY 2011-12 draft budget contains expenses that total $15,406,449.55 and revenues that 
are anticipated to be $14,011,562.72.  The expenses exceed the revenue by $1,394,886.83, 
which will become balanced by applying $1,100,000 from available capital improvement 
reserves and $294,886.83 from available un-restricted reserves.  The following is a brief 
summary of each area of the budget.  Rather than repeating all the numbers contained in the 
budget document, I will provide insight to the development of many of the numbers. 
 
Revenue.  The three primary sources of revenue are water rates, recreation fees, and property 
taxes.  The revenues from each of these areas (water and recreation) can be highly variable 
and influenced by many factors such as weather conditions, economic climate, and changes in 
customer demands.  The following are the key revenue highlights that were considered in the 
development of the proposed FY 2011-12 budget. 
 

Water Rates:    Water revenues contained in the budget are based on the conservative 
estimation of water sales volume of 14,895 acre-feet. The average volume of water sales 
over the past five year, excluding current year, is 16,138 acre-feet, but the standard 
deviation to that average is 2,650 acre-feet for the five-year period. The revenues are in 
proportion to revenues the sales volume that was delivered to each classification of service 
during the previous two years.  On this basis, it is estimated that water sales will generate 



$5,986,090 and water service charges will generate $1,909,218. 
 
Table 1 – Water Sales and Rainfall for Specific Water Customer Classifications 

 FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10 Est. FY 2010-11 
Rainfall ( inches) 12.91 28.48 34.00 

Resale (AF) 5,686 6,482 5,114
Agriculture (AF) 7,457 6,398 4,600
Residential (AF) 1,595 1,458 1,300
Total Water Sales (AF) 15,892 15,307 12,500

 
It should be noted that there are several factors that have contributed to the recent reduction 
in water sales. Water sales to key classifications are provided in Table 1, with a comparative 
to annual rainfall totals.  During FY 2010-11, water sales in the Agricultural classification 
declined primarily due to the frequent rainfall events and the filling of the local aquifers.  
Water sales to the Resale classification decreased due to the City of Ventura’s cooperation 
to keep water sales within district boundaries, combined with the loss of two large City 
customers.  It is anticipated that annual water sales to the City of Ventura will likely be 
around 5,000 acre-feet for the next few years.  Water sales to the Ojai resale customers, 
Golden State and Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company, have been reduced this year due 
to each agency’s rising water rates and the increased use of local groundwater resources.   

 
There are two specific items that the Finance Committee is watching that will cause 
reconsideration of water rates.  The first item is the potential manipulation of Prop 1A tax 
funding by the State.  The Prop 1A tax funding received by Casitas is approximately $1.8 
million.  If Casitas does not continue to receive this funding, it could mean a 30% increase in 
water rates and service charges, and an increase in recreation rates.  The second item is 
the Safety of Dams debt to the Bureau of Reclamation.  The District is currently in 
negotiations for a payment contract and waiting for the BOR to determine the amount of the 
debt.  The preliminary estimate of the debt is $3.3 million which, depending on the term of 
the payment contract, could cause a 2-3% rate increase. 
 
The Finance Committee has reviewed the proposed FY 2011-12 Budget revenues, reserve 
balances, expenses, delinquency rates, and determined that a water rate increase is not 
recommended at this time for FY 2011-12 Budget.  Should any of the items mentioned 
above become current, the Finance Committee may bring a recommendation for rate 
adjustments to the Board. 

 
Recreation Fees:  The estimate of recreation fee revenues is based on historical patterns 
and the assumption that the issue of concessionaire revenues will be resolved during this 
next year.  In preparation of the Budget, the Park Services Manager applied a 5% reduction 
to revenues of the previous year, providing a conservative estimate of revenues.  The 
Recreation Committee was asked to consider increasing recreation fees in order to lessen 
the financial gap between revenues and expenses, but no increase in fee was the 
recommendation.  The Recreation Committee will continue to assess revenue performance 
during the summer of 2011 and may propose a new fees structure in the fall of 2011.  The 
Recreation revenues are estimated to be $3,442,565. 
 
Property Taxes:  The FY 2011-12 Budget assumes that the Prop 1A tax funding will 
continue to be received by the District.  The tax fund revenue is $1,858,318. 
 
Interest on Investments:  The interest on time deposits and investments has been 



redirected to investment strategies that may improve the return on investments over time.  
The estimated interest on investments in the FY2011-12 budget is $288,767.  This is an 
area of improvement over the FY 2009-10 investment returns. 
 

Reserves.  In 2009, the District achieved its goal in attaining adequate levels of unrestricted 
reserves (Resolution No. 06-32), increasing the cash flow reserve to $3,000,000 and 
establishing a capital improvements reserve at an additional $3,000,000.  The FY 2011-12 
Budget proposed to move $1,100,000 from Capital Improvement reserves for the construction 
stages of the Rincon 2(M) Main replacement and $294,886.83 from available un-restricted 
reserves in order to balance the proposed budget.  Only a portion of the Rincon 2(M) Main 
replacement funds were expended in 2010-11as no construction occurred on this project. The 
project will start in September 2012 and is an expense in the FY 2011-12 budget.  The direction 
is to leave the Storm Damage budget whole by using $1,100,000 reserve funds from the Capital 
Improvements reserve fund.  Any additions to the Budget would be similarly be funded by 
available un-restricted reserves.  
 
Expenses.  Section managers and supervisors have prepared individual expense budgets for 
each task area, presented in the budget as Department Requested.  The General Manager 
reviewed and discussed each expense with the Departments and appropriate changes were 
made as necessary.  The FY 2011-12 expenses are very comparable to the FY 2010-11 
expenses, with a few minor exceptions.   
 

Staffing:  There are no requests for additional full-time personnel.  The Water Treatment-
Operations section is requesting 960 hours for part-time employee to assist with the 
preparation of meter settings in the coastal communities for conversion to automatic reads.  
 
Salary Adjustments:  The budget includes a two percent salary cost of living adjustment, in 
anticipation that COLAs will be provided in accordance with current employee MOUs.  The 
budget accounts for the offset in the date in which COLAs will be applied to each bargaining 
group.  The Board may reconsider this adjustment. 
 
Vehicles:  Currently, the District’s vehicle fleet is in good condition and adequate in 
numbers.  Several vehicles are older than 7 years but have less than 100,000 miles and no 
air conditioning.  The Manager Recommended budget does not have a budget figure for 
vehicle replacement.  It has recently been pointed out that the two recreation patrol trucks 
are exceeding 100,000 miles and experience more frequent visits to the repair shop.  It has 
been requested that budget be added to replace one of these trucks, perhaps with a small 
hybrid vehicle at a cost of $28,000.  This would be an adjustment made to the Board 
approved draft budget.  It is planned to address several other trucks in the 2012-13 budget. 
 
Power Purchased for Pumping:  It is anticipated that electrical power costs will rise 5%, 
increasing the District’s electrical cost to $1,293,600.  This estimate is conservatively based 
on historical electrical costs for 16,000 acre-feet of annual water sales.  With changes in 
lake elevation and variability of pumped water demands, costs can vary from the budget 
estimate. This cost is included in the Electrical/Mechanical expense budget. 
 
Reimbursable Projects:  The budget for Water Conservation has $470,523 in outside 
contracts for the Senior Canyon Improvement grant project.  

 
Capital Projects Budget. 
 
The 10-Year Capital Projects have been updated by staff and presented in the budget binder. 



The proposed FY 2011-12 Capital budget is $3,118,500.  The attached list of capital projects is 
provided for further assessment of the work staff will be pursuing during FY 2011-12.There are 
three significant projects that are proposed to undertake in FY 2011-12.  The first is the 
construction project to replace a storm-damaged section of the Rincon 2(M) Main, which 
crosses the canyon northwest of La Conchita.  This project is estimated to cost $1,100,000 and 
be completed before 2012.  The second project is a multi-year project to replace outdated 
electrical systems at pump plant facilities.  The third significant project is the first phase 
conversion of meter reading equipment to an automated format.  It should be noted that the 
District is planning to replace the interior coating on the last of eight pressure filters.   
 
Staff is dedicated to aggressively accomplishing the capital projects that have been proposed 
for FY 2011-12. 
 
Lake Casitas Recreation Area Budget. 
The goal of the LCRA budget is to provide a balance between projected revenue and expenses. 
This goal appears to be a difficult one to attain in light of recent boating restrictions and based 
on the level of current user fees.  The proposed FY 2011-12 budget reflects a net loss of 
$339,316.  The revenue was reduced by 5% from estimates of the prior year.  The summary of 
totals for the Recreation section is as follows: 
   

 FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12
Total Revenue $3,636,480  $3,442,565
Total Expenses ($2,666,315) ($2,397,867)
Total Capital ($331,500) ($209,000)
Admin Overhead ($940,025) ($882,279)
Depreciation Expense ($311,000) ($292,735)
Net Profit/(Loss) ($612,360) ($339,316)

 
At this time, the budget for recreation has decreased in all categories of expense and revenue, 
bringing the estimated deficit down from the estimated deficit of the FY 2010-11 budget.  Similar 
deficits have been predicted in 2009 an 2010, with the year-end audits showing deficits that 
were appreciably less than estimated by the budgets.  The 2010 audit showed a $186,277 
deficit, as compared to the $604,457 deficit estimated by the approved budget.  LCRA staff are 
committed to control costs and seek projects that will generate revenues for the LCRA. 
 
Conclusion. 
The workshop is provided for the Board of Directors to discuss the Draft budget.  It is 
anticipated that the Board would set a public hearing and adoption of the final budget for the 
June 22, 2011, regular meeting of the Board of Directors.  The action to set the public hearing 
will be considered at the May 25th regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
If there are any questions in regard to this matter, please do not hesitate to discuss any and all 
questions with me. 
 



Capital Projects Listing by Section: 
 
Engineering: 
Protect Casitas Gravity Main $37,500
Rincon 2(M) Main Replacement – La Conchita $1,100,000
Reservoir Maintenance – 5-year Inspection $35,000
Replace Main Office lighting – Investigate HVAC Replacement (VCERA) $100,000
Maintain Reservoir Roads and Rings $20,000
Reservoir Safety & Security Improvements $15,000
Robles Diffuser Panels $70,000

Subtotal $1,377,500
 
Water Quality: 
Aeration System Study $100,000

Subtotal $100,000
 
Electrical Mechanical: 
Fairview Pump Plant Switch Gear/Electrical Refurbishment $410,000
Ventura Avenue No. 1 Pump Plant Unit 4 Globe Valve $18,000
SCADA CP-1 Split and Upgrade $81,500
Pump Plant Electrical Rehabilitation $170,000
Ventura Avenue #2 Pump Plant Transformer Replacement $100,000

Subtotal $779,500
 
Pipeline: 
Valve Replacement – Matilija Conduit $32,000
Valve Replacement - Gravity $28,000
Valve Replacement – Oak View $94,500

Subtotal $154,500
 
Water Treatment & Operations: 
Filter # 1 Internal Coating Repair (Last One!) $250,000
Repair Coating on Dam Screen Hoist Structure $80,000
Metering System Upgrade to AMR system – Coastal Communities $140,000

Subtotal $470,000
 
District Maintenance: 
Casitas No. 2 Chlorination Station Roof Replacement and paint $28,000

Subtotal $28,000
 
Recreation Maintenance: 
Road Maintenance $75,000
Play structure Repair and Maintenance  $20,000
Front Entrance Improvements $39,000

Subtotal $134,000
 
Recreation – Water Playground: 
Resurface River and repair Splash Pads $75,000

Subtotal $75,000
 



Total Capital Projects $3,118,500
 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC 
 HEARING FOR INPUT REGARDING THE 2011-2012 BUDGET 
 
 

WHEREAS, Casitas is interested in public comments regarding the adoption of the 
2010-2011 budget;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1.   A public hearing will be conducted for the purpose of hearing all interested 
parties regarding the 2011-2012 budget. 
 

2. The place of said hearing is hereby fixed at Casitas' Office, 1055 Ventura 
Avenue, in the town of Oak View.  The date and time for said hearing is hereby fixed as 
June 22, 2011, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

3. The Clerk of the Board of Casitas is hereby directed to give notice of said 
hearing by publishing a notice of the time and place of the hearing in the local newspapers. 
 
 ADOPTED this 25th day of May, 2011. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
President, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  May 19, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Change in Position Status and Salary – Associate Fisheries Biologist  
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the motion to approve the change in the 
job status of the Associate Fisheries Biologist from a five-year term to full employment and 
change the salary for this position to range E31. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

   
In reference to the memorandum by Scott Lewis, Fisheries Program Manager regarding the 
position of the Associate Fisheries Biologist, the General Manager supports the content of the 
memorandum and understands the vital role that the Associate Fisheries Biologist serves for 
the District.  As such, the position has been considered for its applicability to the long-term 
needs and core roles of the District and for a comparative salary range offered by other 
agencies.  Changes are needed to the status and salary of the position. 
 
At this time, the position is receiving all benefits of full employment, except for the condition 
that employment can be terminated at the end of a five year term.  The current employee is in 
the fourth year of the five year term.  Given the importance of long-term knowledge of the river 
system and many decades of more work needed in the river and lake, the position should be 
made into a full employment position.  This would also remove the unknown by the employee 
and the District of what could occur as both reach the five-year term.  As stated above, the 
position is currently receiving all employment benefits that are provided to others in the general 
unit.  The change the employment status would have no budgetary impact. 
 
The District recognizes that salaries need to be kept competitive in order to attract and keep 
employees at the District, also recognizing the value of the training and long-term knowledge 
the employee gains while at the District.  In review of the salary offered by United Water 
Conservation District, an adjustment of the salary is recommended.  Further, it should be 
considered that the current Associate Fisheries Biologist has approximately seven years 
experience on the Ventura River, which has value when considering the range and step to be 
assigned.  The General Manager recommends the range be changed from E18 to E31. 
 

Current Associate Fisheries Biologist $3,931.37 - $4,738.76 
UWCD Associate Fisheries Biologist $4,862.83 - $5,910.83 
Proposed Associate Fisheries Biologist $5,331.90 - $6,448.69 
 

This item has received review by the Personnel Committee and supported the item to be move 
to the Board for a motion to approve the change of the job status and salary. 



 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Interdepartmental Memorandum

 
 

To: Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 

From: Scott Lewis, Fisheries Program Manager 

Subject: Associate Fisheries Biologist position  

Date: 05-19-11 

 

 
The Associate Fisheries Biologist position is an integral part of the District’s Fisheries 
Program.  Because the Fisheries Program was new, the position’s initial 5-year job 
duration was selected due to the unknown complexity of the program.  It has become 
evident that because of the actual complexity of the program, which includes ongoing 
requirements related to the Robles BO, general District-wide support, Lake Casitas 
Fisheries Management issues, and general environmental support to District that the 
position’s role is critical.  The Associate Fisheries Biologist’s job duties are critical to 
annual and ongoing operations and the position requires District and basin wide 
knowledge and history that short-term employees cannot provide.  Because the 
Associate Fisheries Biologist position is integral to the long-term District requirements, 
the position should be made permanent and compensated at a level equivalent to other 
positions within the District and similar positions around the region in order to retain 
quality employees. 
 

 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  May 12, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Employment of Relatives  
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors review and consider the approval of part-time 
employment for specific relatives of current employees.  
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

   
The District has by Ordinance 00-04, Section 3.4, and by District Employee Handbook, Section 
35, the requirement for the employment of a relative of a regular full-time employee to be 
considered for approval by the Board of Directors.  The purpose of the Board review is to bring 
transparency to the hiring of relatives, address the issues that could arise from any potential 
for nepotism or conflict of interest, and thus protect the District from various employment 
claims.  It appears that the District has addressed this very issue several times in the past, with 
no apparent issues having resulted from the Board determination to part-time employ a relative 
of full-time employee. 
 
At this time, the District has two circumstances that need consideration by the Board of 
Directors, as follows: 
 
(1) Each year, the District hires approximately 70 lifeguards for the Water Park at the Lake 

Casitas Recreation Area.  The lifeguard is a seasonal part-time position.  During the first 
week of May 2011, while processing of job applications, Rebekah Vieira discovered that 
two of the prospective lifeguards are related by either birth or marriage to current 
employees of the District.  Upon notice to both the current and prospective employees 
of the requirements of the District, the employees and/or their relatives have requested 
the employment status be considered by the Board of Directors.  The two prospective 
lifeguards have not completed the hiring process, pending the approval by the Board of 
Directors.  

 
Prospective lifeguard Derek Kaiser is the son of Director Peter Kaiser.  Director 
Kaiser is considered as an employee of the District.  It can be perceived that Director 
Kaiser indirectly supervises employees of the District by virtue of the Board authority 
over all District functions, through the assigned authority of the General Manager 
and subsequent managers and supervisors. 
 



 2 

Prospective lifeguard Brock Taylor is the son of Brian Taylor, Pipeline Foreman, and 
step-son of Suzi Taylor, Park Services Officer IV.  While there is supervisory 
separation between the lifeguard and the Pipeline Foreman, there are occasions that 
the Park Services Officer IV will supervise the recreation staff during the Park 
Services Manager’s absence.  The lifeguards are directly supervised by Aaron Wall, 
Park Services Officer III. 

 
(2) Over several years, the General Manager has approved the employment of part-time 

employees where there is no direct or indirect supervision of the part-time employee by 
the full-time employee.   The separation of employment is by assignment to a different 
division or section of the District.  At times, the District has had as many as four part-
time employee relatives working at the recreation area.  The District currently has two 
part-time employees that are directly related to two full-time employees. 

 
Part-time Park Maintenance Mitchell Werber is the son of Mike Werber, Distribution 
Maintenance IV.  There are no direct or indirect supervisory conditions, nor any 
conditions which place either employee in the same task.  Mitchell Werber has been 
employed with the District for the last two years. 
 
Part-time Park Maintenance Ian McMahon is the son of Susan McMahon, 
Laboratory Supervisor. There are no direct or indirect supervisory conditions, nor 
any conditions which place either employee in the same task.  Ian McMahon has 
been employed with the District for the last two years. 

 
District counsel has provided a legal evaluation and opinion to the General Manager in regard 
to the employment of Director Kaiser’s son.  Many of the points made by counsel can apply to 
non-officials such as full-time employees.  The key premises to be evaluated when considering 
the hiring of a part-time employee that is a relative of a full-time employee are: 

1) Violations of any anti-nepotism laws or policies?  California law does not specifically 
address nepotism in local agency hiring.  The separation of supervision tends to limit 
the exposure to nepotism.  Further, having the employment approval process go 
through the Board of Directors keeps everything in an open and transparent process 
should there be an issue at a later date. 

 
2) Violations of financial and/or common law conflicts of interest.  The key point made by 

counsel is that the board member does not use the official position to influence the 
decision of the District to employ the relative of the board member.  It could be further 
expanded to the influence by the board member on the supervision and assignment of 
the part-time employee.  These same conditions could be applied to the influence of the 
full-time employee on the decision to hire and the continuing supervision by others of 
the relative part-time employee. 

 
3) Counsel makes a good point that the agency and its board members avoid any 

perception of impropriety or unethical behavior in the making of the decision to hire a 
relative of a full-time employee.  Put quite simply – “One good question to ask is 
whether the agency or the board member would like to read an article challenging the 



 3 

hiring in the newspaper – if the answer is no, then it may be prudent not to hire (even 
when the hiring is defensible from a legal standpoint).” 

 
Counsel has indicated that should the District wish to proceed with the hiring, the decision 
must be ratified by the Board in a vote that excludes the vote of the parent board member. 
 
 

 
 
 

This item has received review by the Personnel Committee on May 18, 2011, and supported 
the item to be move to the Board for a motion. 
 
 
 
 



 
ARNOLD, BLEUEL, LAROCHELLE, 

            MATHEWS & ZIRBEL, LLP 
 
   M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:  Casitas Municipal Water District  
 
DATE:  May 20, 2011 
 

 
‘ 
 
CMWD\ Conflict of Interest Hiring Decision (5-20-11) 

1

R  E:  CMWD - Conflict of Interest  

  
This memorandum summarizes the conflict of interest issues that may arise should the District 
employ a District Board member’s minor child at the District’s recreational facilities. Conflict of 
interest issues are analyzed under the following:  
 

1. Anti-Nepotism laws or policies;  
2. Financial conflict of interest laws under the Political Reform Act (Gov. Code Section 87100 

et seq.);  
3. Financial conflict of interest in contracts (Government Code Section 1090 et seq.); or 
4. Conflict of Interest prohibitions under the Common Law.  
 

Anti-Nepotism laws or policies:  California law does not specifically address nepotism in local 
agency hiring. If the District has a policy against the proposed hiring, then the inquiry ends there 
and the hiring should be prohibited. District Policy, Section 35 states that "No person shall be 
employed in a position directly or indirectly supervised by a relative without the approval of the 
Board of Directors." If the parent Board Member is considered an employee of the District, then 
there may be an argument that the parent Board member indirectly supervises his minor son by 
virtue of the fact that each member of the District’s Board of Director exercises governance 
authority over District operations.  If that argument were to prevail, then the hiring of a Board 
member's minor child by the District for summer employment would require ratification by the 
Board of Directors. That ratification should be by a vote of the Board that excludes the parent 
Board member. 
  
Financial conflict of interest laws under the Political Reform Act (Gov. Code Section 87100 et 
seq.): The Political Reform Act sets forth   an eight-step process to determine if a conflict of 
interest exists.  Generally, the Political Reform Act provides that a public official may not 
participate in a government decision in which he has a financial interest. The Political Reform Act 
defines participation in a government decision to include an attempt by a board member to use his 
or her official position to influence a governmental decision. (Government Code Section 87100.). 
There is authority to support the conclusion that a local agency board member may be considered to 
have a financial interest in the employment of his dependent children. (Gov. Code Sections 87103, 



 
‘ 
 
CMWD\ Conflict of Interest Hiring Decision (5-20-11) 

2

82029; 2CCR18703.5; See also, Tremlett Advice Letter, I-89-386.).  Based only on the general 
principles noted above,  the parent Board member may risk an alleged violation of the Political 
Reform Act based on the argument that the parent Board member influenced the District’s decision 
to employ the minor child. Evaluating the strength of this allegation would require a more detailed 
eight-step analysis that is beyond the scope of this memorandum. 
  
Financial conflict of interest in contracts (Government Code Section 1090 et seq.):  An officer 
does not have a financial interest in a contract entered into by the board of which the officer is a 
member if the officer only has a remote interest in the contract, the interest is disclosed to the board 
and a noted in the official records and, thereafter, the board approves or ratifies the contract by 
sufficient vote without the vote of the of the member with the remote interest. (Gov. Code Section 
1091(a).)  A parent has a remote interest in the earnings of his or her minor child for personal 
services. (Gov. Code Section 1091(b)(4).) Under the instant facts, the most prudent approach to 
avoid a conflict of interest allegation under Government Code 1090 et seq. would be for the parent 
Board member to disclose a remote interest in the minor child’s employment contract and, 
subsequently, to have the minor child’s employment contract ratified by a vote of the Board from 
which the parent Board member is excluded. 
  
Conflict of Interest prohibitions under the Common Law:  The common law doctrine of conflict 
of interest applies to both pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests.  Under the instant facts, there is a 
risk that the parent Board member would be exposed to a common law conflict of interest claim. 
That claim could be based on arguments including, without limitation, the following: (1) that the 
hiring enhanced the parent Board member's financial interests by providing income to a dependent 
child; or, (2) that the hiring enhanced the non-pecuniary interests of the parent Board member by 
advancing the parent Board member’s desire to advance the interests and development of the minor 
child.  
  
In considering this matter, it should be noted that authorities in the field of ethics consistently 
advise public officials that laws governing ethics should be viewed as providing the "floor" and not 
the "ceiling" by which ethical decisions should be analyzed.  A public official should avoid any 
perception of impropriety or unethical behavior. Accordingly, public officials are well advised to  
consider whether the general public might consider the public official’s involvement in the decision 
as evidence of  bias or favoritism.  It may also be useful for a public official to consider the impact 
on the official and the public agency should the propriety of the decision be publicly challenged - 
even where the decision is defensible from a legal standpoint. 
  
Given the above, the parent Board member risks allegations of conflict of interest.  Should the 
District wish to proceed with the hiring, District policy may require that the hiring decision  
be ratified by the Board in a vote that excludes the vote of the parent Board member. That same 
Board ratification appears to be required by Government Code Section 1090 et seq. Finally, the 
parent Board member should consider the fact that the hiring decision may, even if legally 
defensible, result in a public perception of impropriety in the form of bias and favoritism. 

















Casitas Municipal Water District
Monthly Cost Analysis
2010/2011
05/04/2011

Marzula & Operation Fisheries Project Name Cost of the
Marzula  of Robles Fish Passage Fish Passage

11-5-21-5049-12 11-5-??-????-14 11-5-28-50??-??

2003/2004 0.00 132,143.20 6,066.93
2004/2005 0.00 298,006.35 39,124.63 8,079,888.06
2005/2006 274,270.75 144,052.92 93,406.52 0.00
2006/2007 194,409.73 110,707.78 188,651.75 114,790.04
2007/2008 21,111.90 117,299.80 272,644.56 0.00
2008/2009 1,207.75 88,201.00 307,739.00 0.00
2009/2010 216,797.47 124,874.54 342,756.94 0.00

Expenditures
July 0.00 3,089.39 20,641.01

August 330.76 12,596.61 23,810.79

September 2,095.70 17,788.10 24,170.55

October 23,145.79 11,641.05 28,122.00

November 28,536.47 14,852.00 15,834.63

December 67,247.98 21,760.81 29,219.43

January 6,984.81 8,195.71 23,641.42

Feburary 11,272.68 2,799.15 31,386.93 Less: Grants
CA Coastal Conservancy -1,750,000.00

March 6,383.33 3,785.84 29,363.45 CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,500,000.00
CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,000,000.00

April 0.00 0.00 0.00 Pacific States Marine -8,988.86
    (Timber Debris Fence)

May 0.00 0.00 0.00 Pacific States Marine -18,980.00
    (Vaki Shroud)

June

Total Cost YTD 145,997.52 96,508.66 226,190.21 Total Cost TD    8,194,678.10

Less: Grant Funding    -4,277,968.86

Total Project Cost 853,795.12 1,111,794.25 1,476,580.54 Total Project Cost   3,916,709.24

Total: Operation of Robles, Fisheries and Fish Passage 6,505,084.03

Prepared by dcollin 05/04/2011 Page 1



 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  May 18, 2011  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report April 2011 
 
Visitation Numbers and Methodology 
 
The following is a comparison of visitations for April 2011:   

 April 2010 April 2011 March 2011 
Visitor Days 69,932 82,536 30,724 
Camps 6,125 7,666 2,298 
Cars 17,483 20,634 7,681 
Boats 822 1,024 586 
Kayaks & Canoes 7 15 4 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2009/2010 503,692
2010/2011 521,576
% Change 3.551

 
Administration 
The Park Store opened in April after the BOR gave approval for a month to month agreement in February and the Board 
approved Gary Wolfe to operate the Park Store this upcoming season.   
 
Work began on the reservation building remodel that will provide three walk up windows for camping and Water Adventure 
reservations/ticket sales. Reservation staff have temporarily moved into the PSO office to conduct business.    
 
Boating/Fishing - April  

There were 26 cables sold for new inspections, 26 vessel re-inspections, and 1,402 boats were retagged. 
Eight boats failed the first inspection.   Shoreline fishing at night was held April 14, 15 and 16. Western Outdoor 
News held two tournaments on April 2 and 16, and the Conejo Bass Club held a tournament on April 16.  Anglers 
Choice held a night tournament on April 22.     
 
PSO Rob Weinerth was invited to speak to a group of Cub Scouts on April 16.  
 
PSO and APSO staff are continuing to collect data for the creel survey and an opinion survey focusing their effort the 
first week of every month. The data collected is analyzed by Scott Lewis and will be used in the Fisheries 
Management Plan.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



Revenue Reporting 
The figures below illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s revenue collected in the respective month (operations, 
concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager.  

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

FY 09/10 657,684 468,111 221,424 249,082 140,840 123,494 167,416 215,552 280,698 301,207

FY 10/11 597,378 475,594 213,568 140,193 115,366 102,686 188,851 173,107 231,315 298,909

July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April

 
 
 
Incidents  
Reportable incidents where County Sheriff or Emergency Services agencies support was called, include a boating incident, 
several suspected DUI’s with subsequent arrests, assault with a BB Gun, and chest pains.  Other notable incidents include a 
citation issued for underage possession of alcohol, a trash dumpster on fire, and a customer reported bear and cub spotted in 
camp area.  
 
 
  
G:\WPDOCS\REPORTS\MONTH\2011\April.2011.doc 

 2



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

05/18/11
 

Weighed 
Average 

Type of Date of Amount of Current Rate of Date of % of Days to Days to
Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Deposit Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XS4S40 09/16/11 $726,316 $708,295 3.625% 07/01/10 5.68% 118 7
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/13 $743,750 $738,486 3.125% 07/01/10 5.93% 925 55
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/15 $729,603 $735,650 2.875% 07/01/10 5.90% 1464 86
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWW470 03/09/12 $707,315 $704,900 1.125% 06/30/10 5.66% 291 16
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/15 $807,683 $789,579 4.750% 07/19/10 6.34% 1619 103
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/13 $766,605 $755,118 4.125% 07/01/10 6.06% 849 51
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/14 $739,907 $740,292 3.000% 07/01/10 5.94% 1150 68
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACE70 09/21/12 $723,646 $716,352 2.125% 06/30/10 5.75% 483 28
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACF40 12/15/11 $706,398 $703,612 1.125% 06/30/10 5.65% 207 12
*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/14 $739,123 $741,748 3.000% 07/01/10 5.95% 1198 71
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/18 $1,055,030 $1,113,801 1.375% 07/06/10 8.94% 2577 230
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/13 $709,352 $713,510 1.500% 04/01/10 5.72% 943 54
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/14 $718,129 $723,954 2.125% 07/01/10 5.81% 1272 74
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828MB30 12/15/12 $709,707 $708,064 1.125% 06/30/10 5.68% 567 32
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/20 $1,041,021 $1,095,653 1.375% 07/01/10 8.79% 3117 274
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828ML10 12/31/11 $707,191 $703,745 1.000% 06/30/10 5.65% 223 13

Accrued Interest $58,062 $70,471

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $12,388,838 $12,463,230 85.33%

*CD CD - $0 $0 0.000% 0.00%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506 $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $0 $0 0.46% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,142,005 $2,142,005 0.89% Estimated 14.67%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $14,530,844 $14,605,235 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $14,530,844 $14,601,471

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $16,751,665 $16,751,665

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST $3,195,304 $3,195,304
CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $31 $31 0.470%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $17,726,179 $17,800,571

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $17,036,892 $17,036,892

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit
*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 
** Local Agency Investment Fund 
*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.
**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 
and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.
All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 
investment policy.


	5-25-11 agenda.pdf
	4-27-11 min
	Engagement Letter Fedak
	Reso setting hearingUWMP
	resolution for oak view water availb charge hearing
	bill list
	Rec Minutes 05 02 2011
	Executive Minutes 05 03 2011
	Personnel Minutes 05 18 2011
	Water Res Minutes 05 19 2011
	Fin Minutes 05 20 11
	11-12 Budget Workshop Memo
	Reso budget hearing 2011 2011
	Fisheries Job Status Change 05 19 2011
	5 yr fish bio change
	Employment of relatives 05 12 2011 (1)
	conflict of interest hiring decision (5-20-11) Krimmer
	Employee Relative Hiring Docs
	CSDA
	Board Report - Montly Costs 20010-11 (4)
	Sheet1

	LCRA report April.2011
	Investment Report 05-18-2011
	A


